LAW LIBRARY

SUPERIOR COURT of ARIZONA, MARICOPA COUNTY

June 2004

CONTENTS

	RIZONA	
ST	ATE COURTS	. 4
	Alabama	
	Alaska	
	Arkansas	. 5
	California	. 5
	Colorado	. 5
	Connecticut	. 6
	Delaware	. 6
	District of Columbia	. 6
	Florida	
	Georgia	. 7
	Hawaii	. 7
	Idaho	. 7
	Illinois	. 7
	Indiana	. 7
	lowa	. 8
	Kansas	. 8
	Kentucky	. 8
	Louisiana	
	Maine	. 8
	Maryland	. 8
	Massachusetts	. 9
	Michigan	. 9
	Minnesota	
	Mississippi	
	Missouri	
	Montana	
	Nebraska	
	New Hampshire	
	New Jersey	
	New Mexico	
	New York	
	North Carolina	
	North Dakota	11
	Ohio	
	Oklahoma	
	Oregon	
	Pennsylvania	
	Rhode Island	
	Texas	
	Vermont	
	Virginia	
	Washington	
	West Virginia	
	Wisconsin	
	Wyoming	
	DERAL COURTS	
	General	
	First Circuit	

Fourth Circuit	
Fifth Circuit	15
Sixth Circuit	15
Seventh Circuit	
Eighth Circuit	15
Ninth Circuit	15
Eleventh Circuit	16
Bankruptcy	16
GENERAL	16
TOPICAL	16
SELECTED ARTICLES	18
RESEARCH	

ARIZONA

Arizona. Superior Court (Maricopa County). *Judge's Arizona Instructions: JAZI and Revised Arizona Jury Instructions (Criminal)*. Phoenix, AZ: Superior Court of Arizona in Maricopa County, 2002-. COURT ADMIN KFA2983.Z9 J83 2002.

- Arizona. Supreme Court Committee on Uniform Jury Instructions. *Recommended Arizona Jury Instructions (Criminal)*. Phoenix, AZ: State Bar of Arizona, 1980. ARIZ KFA2983.A65 A7.
- Arizona. Supreme Court Committee on Uniform Jury Instructions. State Bar of Arizona. *Recommended Arizona Jury Instructions*. Phoenix, AZ: State Bar of Arizona, 1974. KFA2942.6.A65 A7 1974.
- Kaufman, Roger W. *Arizona Courtroom Handbook*. Phoenix, AZ: Arizona Weekly Gazette, 1970. ARIZ KFA2938.K3 1970.
- State Bar of Arizona. Civil Jury Instruction Committee. *Recommended Arizona Jury Instructions (Civil)* Phoenix, AZ: State Bar of Arizona, 1987-. KFA2942.6.A65 S75 1987.
- State Bar of Arizona. Civil Jury Instruction Committee. *Recommended Arizona Jury Instructions, Civil, Second Edition, Committee Draft (June 1990)*. Phoenix, AZ: State Bar of Arizona, 1990. ARIZ KFA2942.6 A65 S75 1990.
- State Bar of Arizona. Civil Jury Instruction Committee. *Revised Arizona Jury Instructions* (*Civil*). 2nd ed. Phoenix, AZ: Continuing Legal Education, State Bar of Arizona, 1994-.
- State Bar of Arizona. Civil Jury Instructions Committee. *Revised Arizona Jury Instructions, Civil.* 3rd ed. Phoenix, AZ: State Bar of Arizona, 1997-. ARIZ KFA2942.6 A65 S75.
- State Bar of Arizona. Continuing Legal Education. *Recommended Arizona Jury Instructions, Civil.* Phoenix, AZ: State Bar of Arizona, 1991. KFA2942.6 A65 S75 1991.
- State Bar of Arizona. Criminal Jury Instruction Committee. *Recommended Arizona Jury Instructions (Criminal)*. Phoenix, AZ: Continuing Legal Education, State Bar of Arizona, 1989. KFA2983.A65 A7 1989.
- State Bar of Arizona. Criminal Jury Instruction Committee; Criminal Rules Committee. *Revised Arizona Jury Instructions, Criminal*. Phoenix, AZ: Continuing Legal Education, State Bar of Arizona, 1989-. KFA2983.A65 A7 1989.

STATE COURTS

Alabama

- Alabama Pattern Jury Instructions Committee. *Alabama Pattern Jury Instructions—Civil*, 2d ed. Rochester, NY: Lawyers Cooperative Pub., 1993. KFA542.A95 1993.
- Colquitt, Joseph A. *Pattern Jury Instructions—Criminal*. Tuscaloosa, AL: University of Alabama, Alabama Bar Institute for Continuing Legal Education, and Administrative Office of Courts, 1994.

Alaska

Alaska. Supreme Court. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *Alaska Criminal Pattern Jury Instructions*. Anchorage, AL: Alaska Court System, 2000-.

Perlman, Harvey S. and Stephen S. Saltzberg. *Alaska Pattern Civil Jury Instructions*. Anchorage, AL: Alaska Bar Association, 1984-.

Arkansas

- Arkansas. Supreme Court. Committee on Criminal Jury Instructions. *Arkansas Model Jury Instructions, Criminal.* Charlottesville, VA: Michie Co., 1994-.
- Arkansas. Supreme Court. Committee on Jury Instructions. *Arkansas Model Jury Instructions, Civil.* St Paul, MN: Thomson West, 2004-.

California

- Ackley, Honorable Harry A. *Criminal Defense Jury Instructions*. Fort Worth, TX: Knowles Publishing, Inc., 2004.
- California. Judicial Council. *California Forms of Jury Instruction*. Newark, NJ: LexisNexis/Matthew Bender, 2003-.
- California. Judicial Council. Task Force on Jury Instructions. *CACI Forms: California Jury Instructions, Civil.* St. Paul, MN: Thomson/West, 2004-.
- California. Judicial Council. Task Force on Jury Instructions. *Civil Jury Instructions*. Newark, NJ: LexisNexis, 2004-.
- California. Superior Court (Los Angeles County). Committee on Standard Jury Instructions. *California Jury Instructions, Civil.* Eagen, MN: West, 2004-. KFC1047.A65 C35.
- California. Superior Court (Los Angeles County). Committee on Standard Jury Instructions. *CALJIC Forms: California Jury Instructions, Criminal.* St. Paul, MN: Thomson/West, 2004-. KFC1171.A65 C3422.
- Civil Committee on California Jury Instructions. *BAJI Forms: California Jury Instructions, Civil.* St. Paul, MN: Thomson/West, 2004-.
- Judicial Council of California Civil Jury Instructions: CACI. Web page, accessed May 2004. Available at http://www.courtinfo.ca.gov/reference/documents/civiljuryinst.pdf.
- State Bar of California. CACI. Oakland, CA: Continuing Education of the Bar, 2004.

Colorado

- Colorado. Supreme Court. Committee on Civil Jury Instruction. *Colorado Jury Instructions, Civil.* St. Paul, MN: West Group, 1999-. KFC2342.6 A65 C62.
- Colorado. Supreme Court. Committee on Criminal Jury Instructions. Colorado Jury

Instructions, Criminal. St. Paul, MN: West Publishing Co., 1983. KFC2383.A65 C66 1983.

Colorado Bar Association. Denver Bar Association. *Colorado Jury Instructions for Civil Trials*. Denver, CO: Continuing Legal Education in Colorado, 2000-.

Connecticut

- Borden, David M. and Leonard Orland. *Criminal Jury Instructions*. 3rd ed. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2001.
- Pellegrino, Joseph H. *A Collection of Connecticut Selected Jury Instructions, Criminal.* 3rd ed. Enfield, CT: Commission on Official Legal Publications, Judicial Branch, State of Connecticut, 2001.
- State of Connecticut Judicial Branch. *Civil Jury Instructions*. Web page, accessed May 2004. Available at http://www.jud.state.ct.us/civiljury/.
- State of Connecticut Judicial Branch. *Connecticut Selected Jury Instructions Criminal*. Web page, accessed June 2004. Available at http://www.jud.state.ct.us/criminaljury/.
- Wright, Douglass B., William L. Ankerman and Douglass B. Wright. *Connecticut Jury Instructions (Civil)*. West Hartford, CT: Atlantic Law Book Co., 1993.

Delaware

- Delaware Criminal Code: Pattern Jury Instructions. Wilmington, DE: 1974. KFD583.A8 D4 1974.
- Pattern Jury Instructions for Civil Practice in the Superior Court of the State of Delaware. Wilmington DE: Superior Court of the State of Delaware, 2000-.

District of Columbia

- Bar Association of the District of Columbia. Young Lawyers' Section. *Criminal Jury Instructions for the District of Columbia*. Albany, NY: LexisNexis, Matthew Bender, 2002-.
- Bar Association of the District of Columbia. Young Lawyers' Section. *Standardized Civil Jury Instructions for the District of Columbia*. Newark, NJ: LexisNexis, 2002-.

Florida

- Florida. Supreme Court. Committee on Standard Jury Instructions in Civil Cases and Florida Bar. *Florida Standard Jury Instructions in Civil Cases*. Tallahassee, FL: Florida Bar; Albany, NY: Distributed by LexisNexis, 2001-. KFF542.A65 F55
- Florida. Supreme Court. Committee on Standard Jury Instructions in Criminal Cases. *Florida Standard Jury Instructions in Criminal Cases.* Tallahassee, FL: Florida Bar; Albany, NY: Distributed by LexisNexis, 2002.
- Ninth Judicial Circuit Court of Florida. Ninth Judicial Circuit Court's Jury Instructions Web

Page. Web page, accessed May 2004. Available at http://www.ninja9.org/JuryInst/juryInstructions/.

Standard Jury Instructions in Misdemeanor Cases: Effective April 16, 1981 as Amended March 30, 2000 and Florida Grand Jury Handbook and Grand Jury Instructions: Effective April 16, 1981 as Amended February 14, 1991. Tallahassee, FL: Conference of County Court Judges, 2000.

Georgia

Council of Superior Court Judges of Georgia. *Suggested Pattern Jury Instructions*. Athens, GA: Carl Vinson Institute of Government, University of Georgia, 1991-. KFG42.6.A65 C68.

Hawai'i

- Hawai'i. Supreme Court. Committee on Pattern Criminal Jury Instructions. *Hawai'i Standard Jury Instructions, Criminal: Committee Draft With Commentary.* Honolulu, HI: Supreme Court of the State of Hawai'i, 1996.
- Hawai'i. Supreme Court. *Hawai'i Civil Jury Instructions*. Honolulu, HI: Supreme Court of the State of Hawai'i, 1999-.

Idaho

- Idaho Criminal Jury Instruction Committee. *Idaho Criminal Jury Instructions*. Boise, ID: Idaho Law Foundation, 1995.
- Idaho Pattern Jury Instruction Committee. *Idaho Jury Instructions 2d: Civil 2003*. Boise, ID: The Committee. 2003.

Illinois

- Illinois. Supreme Court. Committee on Jury Instructions in Civil Cases. *Illinois Pattern Jury Instructions.* St. Paul, MN: West, 2000. KFI1742.6 .A87 2000.
- Illinois. Supreme Court. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions in Criminal Cases. *Illinois Pattern Jury Instructions, IPI Criminal.* 4th ed. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2000. KFI 1783.A65 I55 2000.
- Illinois Forms of Jury Instruction. New York, NY: Matthew Bender, 1991-.
- Rowley, Carl L. and Jon M. Moyers. *Illinois Non-Pattern Jury Instructions 3d: Annotated IPI Companion.* St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2001.

Indiana

- Indiana Judges Association. *Indiana Pattern Jury Instructions: Civil.* 2nd ed. rev. Newark, NJ: LexisNexis, 2001.
- Indiana Judges Association. *Indiana Pattern Jury Instructions: Criminal*. Newark, N.J.: LexisNexis, 2003-.

Iowa

Iowa State Bar Association. Special Committee on Uniform Court Instructions. *Iowa Civil Jury Instructions*. Des Moines, IA: Iowa State Bar Association, 1987.

Iowa State Bar Association. Special Committee on Uniform Court Instructions. *Iowa Criminal Jury Instructions*. Des Moines, IA: Iowa State Bar Association, Groth Printing, 1988.

Kansas

Kansas District Judges' Association. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *Pattern Instructions for Kansas, Criminal 3d.* Topeka, KS: The Committee, 1993-. KFK583.A65 K3 1993.

Kansas Judicial Council. PIK-Civil Advisory Committee. *Pattern Jury Instructions, Kansas 3d, Civil.* St. Paul, MN: West Group, 1997-. KFK542 .A65 K349.

Kentucky

Cooper, William S. Kentucky Instructions to Juries: A Text on the Law Relating to Instructions to Juries in Civil and Criminal Cases: With Forms of Instructions and Notes of Cases Bearing on Such Instructions. Cincinnati, OH: Anderson Pub. Co, 1999-. KFK1742 .P3 1999.

Louisiana

Johnson, H. Alston. Civil Jury Instructions. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2001.

Joseph, Cheney C. and P. Raymond Lamonica. *Criminal Jury Instructions and Procedures*. St. Paul, MN: Thomson/West, 2003.

Maine

Alexander, Donald G. *Maine Jury Instruction Manual*. 4th ed. Newark, NJ: Matthew Bender & Co., 2001-.

Maryland

- Aaronson, David E. *Maryland Criminal Jury Instructions and Commentary*. Charlottesville, VA: Michie Co, 1988. KFM1783 .A92 1988.
- Bell, Rosalyn B. *Maryland Civil Jury Instructions and Commentary*. Charlottesville, VA: Michie Co., 1993.
- Maryland State Bar Association. Committee on Criminal Pattern Jury Instructions. Maryland Criminal Pattern Jury Instructions. Baltimore, MD: Maryland Institute for Continuing Professional Education of Lawyers, 1991.
- Maryland State Bar Association. Standing Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *Maryland Civil Pattern Jury Instructions*. Baltimore, MD: Maryland Institute for Continuing Professional Education of Lawyers, 2002.

Massachusetts

- Greaney, John M. *et al. Massachusetts Jury Instructions: Civil.* Charlottesville, VA: Michie, 1997.
- Hrones, Stephen and William P. Homans. *Massachusetts Jury Instructions, Criminal*. Charlottesville, VA: Lexis Law Pub, 1999-.
- Massachusetts. District Court Dept. *Model Jury Instructions for Use in the District Court.*Boston, MA: Massachusetts Continuing Legal Education, 1995-.
- Massachusetts. Superior Court. *Massachusetts Superior Court Criminal Practice Jury Instructions*. Boston, MA: Massachusetts Continuing Legal Education, 1999.
- Massachusetts. Supreme Judicial Court. *Model Jury Instructions on Homicide*. Boston, MA: Supreme Judicial Court, 1999.
- Massachusetts Continuing Legal Education, Inc. *Massachusetts Superior Court Civil Practice Jury Instructions*. Boston, MA: Massachusetts Continuing Legal Education, 2001.

Michigan

- Baughman, Timothy A. and Alexandra Barrionuevo. *Michigan Nonstandard Jury Instructions-Civil.* St. Paul, MN: West Group, 1999-.
- Baughman, Timothy A. and Alexandra Barrionuevo. *Michigan Nonstandard Jury Instructions-Criminal*. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 1999-.
- Michigan. Supreme Court. Committee on Model Civil Jury Instructions. *Michigan Model Civil Jury Instructions*. Ann Arbor, MI: Institute of Continuing Legal Education, 2002-.
- State Bar of Michigan. Standing Committee on Standard Criminal Jury Instructions. *Michigan Criminal Jury Instructions*. Ann Arbor, MI: Institute of Continuing Legal Education, 1989.

Minnesota

- Minnesota Continuing Legal Education. *Jury Instructions and Special Verdict Forms for Sexual Harassment Cases: Employment Law Resource Booklet*. St. Paul, MN: Minnesota Continuing Legal Education, 1995.
- Minnesota District Judges Association. Committee on Criminal Jury Instruction Guides. *Minnesota Jury Instruction Guides, Criminal (CRIMJIG)*. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 1999. KFM5983.A65 M53 1999.
- Minnesota District Judges Association. Committee on Jury Instruction Guides. *Minnesota Jury Instruction Guides: Civil (CIVJIG)*. Saint Paul, MN: West Group, 1999. KFM5942.6 M53.

Mississippi

Mississippi Judicial College. Mississippi Model Jury Instructions, Civil. St. Paul, MN: West

Group Pub., 2000.

Mississippi Judicial College. *Mississippi Model Jury Instructions, Criminal*. St. Paul, MN: West Group Pub., 2000.

Missouri

- Missouri. Supreme Court. Committee on Charges and Instructions-Criminal. *Missouri Approved Instructions, Criminal: MAI-CR*. Jefferson City, MO: Supreme Court of Missouri, 1987-. KFM8383 .M58 1987.
- Missouri. Supreme Court. Committee on Jury Instructions. *Missouri Approved Jury Instructions (MAI)*. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2002. KFM8342.6.A65 M57 2002.
- University of Missouri-Columbia. School of Law. Office of Continuing Legal Education. *Not-in-MAI: Civil Jury Instructions From Missouri Cases*. Columbia, MO: University of Missouri-Columbia, School of Law, Office of Continuing Legal Education, 2001.

Montana

- Montana. Supreme Court. Commission on Civil Jury Instruction Guidelines. *Montana Pattern Instructions (MPI)-(Civil)*. Helena, MT: State Bar of Montana, 2003-.
- Montana. Supreme Court. Criminal Jury Instruction Commission. *MCJI*, *Montana Criminal Jury Instructions*. Helena, MT: State Bar of Montana, 1999-.

Nebraska

Nebraska. Supreme Court. Committee on Civil Practice and Procedure. *Nebraska Jury Instructions, Second Edition: Including Civil Instructions and Criminal Instructions.* St. Paul, MN: West Pub. Co., 2000-.

New Hampshire

- New Hampshire Bar Association. Criminal Justice Section. *New Hampshire Criminal Jury Instructions*. Concord, NH: New Hampshire Bar Association, 1985.
- Pope, Daniel C. and Walter L Murphy. *New Hampshire Civil Jury Instructions*. Newark, NJ: LexisNexis, 2001-.

New Jersey

- Hely, James. *New Jersey Law of Personal Injury: With the Model Jury Charges*. Newark, NJ: New Jersey Law Journal Books, 2003.
- New Jersey. Supreme Court. Committee on Model Jury Charges, Civil. *Model Jury Charges: Civil.* New Brunswick, NJ: New Jersey Institute for Continuing Legal Education, 2001-.
- New Jersey. Supreme Court. Committee on Model Jury Charges, Criminal. *Model Jury Charges, Criminal*. Trenton, NJ: Administrative Office of the Courts, State of New Jersey, 2003-.

New Mexico

Uniform Jury Instructions - Civil. N.M.S.A., Civil, § 13-101 et seq.

Uniform Jury Instructions - Criminal, N.M.S.A., Criminal, § 14-101 et seq.

New Mexico. Supreme Court. Committee on Uniform Jury Instructions. *New Mexico Uniform Jury Instructions*. Charlottesville, VA: Michie, 1996- .

New York

- Association of Justices of the Supreme Court of the State of New York. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *New York Pattern Jury Instructions--Civil*. Rochester, NY: Lawyers Cooperative Pub., 1996-. KFN6047.A65 A84.
- Association of Supreme Court Justices. State of New York. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *New York Pattern Jury Instructions--Civil, 2004 Ed.* St. Paul, MN: Thomson/West, 2003.
- Committee on Criminal Jury Instructions. *Criminal Jury Instructions, New York: Misdemeanors CJI.* New York, NY: Office of Court Administration, 1996-.
- Leventhal, Howard G. and Budd G. Goodman. *Charges to the Jury and Requests to Charge in a Criminal Case, New York.* Wilmette, IL: Callaghan, 1988-.
- Office of Court Administration. Committee on Criminal Jury Instructions. *Criminal Jury Instructions 2nd Edition*. Web page, accessed June 2004. Available at http://www.courts.state.ny.us/juryinst.htm.

North Carolina

- North Carolina Conference of Superior Court Judges. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *North Carolina Pattern Jury Instructions for Civil Cases*. Raleigh, NC: North Carolina Conference of Superior Court Judges, 1988-.
- North Carolina Conference of Superior Court Judges. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *North Carolina Pattern Jury Instructions for Criminal Cases*. Raleigh, NC: North Carolina Conference of Superior Court Judges, 1987-.
- North Carolina Conference of Superior Court Judges. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *North Carolina Pattern Jury Instructions for Motor Vehicle Negligence*. Raleigh, NC: North Carolina Conference of Superior Court Judges, 1987-.

North Dakota

- State Bar Association of North Dakota. *North Dakota Pattern Jury Instructions, Civil.* Bismarck, ND: State Bar Association of North Dakota, 1999-.
- State Bar Association of North Dakota. *North Dakota Pattern Jury Instructions, Criminal.*Bismarck, ND: State Bar Association of North Dakota, 1999-.

Ohio

Ohio Judicial Conference. Jury Instructions Committee. *Ohio Jury Instructions: A Collection of Standard Jury Instructions in Civil and Criminal Cases*. Cincinnati, OH: Anderson Pub. Co., 2000-. KF0542.6.A65 0372.

Oklahoma

- Cantrell, Charles L. *Oklahoma Uniform Jury Instructions: Criminal 2d Annotated.* Dallas, TX: Imprimatur Press and Grail & Tucker Legal Pub, 2003.
- OSCN, Oklahoma State Courts Network. *Oklahoma Uniform Jury Instructions*. Web page, accessed May 2004. Available at http://www.oscn.net/applications/oscn/index.asp?ftdb=STOKJU&level=1.

Uniform Jury Instructions, Civil. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2000.

Uniform Jury Instructions, Criminal. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2001.

Oregon

- Oregon State Bar. Committee on Uniform Civil Jury Instructions. *Oregon Jury Instructions for Civil Cases.* Lake Oswego, OR: Oregon State Bar, 1993-.
- Oregon State Bar. Committee on Uniform Criminal Jury Instructions. *Oregon Uniform Criminal Jury Instructions*. Lake Oswego, OR: Oregon State Bar, 2003-.

Pennsylvania

- Pennsylvania. Supreme Court. Committee for Proposed Standard Jury Instructions, and Civil Instructions Subcommittee. *Pennsylvania Suggested Standard Civil Jury Instructions*. Mechanicsburg, PA: Pennsylvania Bar Institute, 2003-.
- Pennsylvania Suggested Standard Jury Instructions, Criminal. Harrisburg, PA: Pennsylvania Bar Institute, 1979-. KFP583.Z9 P4.
- Villanova, James. *Pennsylvania Proposed Points for Jury Instruction, Civil: A Compilation of Instructions Covering Civil Cases in Pennsylvania*. Pittsburgh, PA: Good Counsel Press, 1997-.

Rhode Island

Rhode Island Bar Association. Superior Court Bench/Bar Committee. *Model Civil Jury Instructions for Rhode Island*. Providence, RI: Rhode Island Bar Association, 2003.

Texas

- Guy, T. Ray. The Jury Charge in Texas Civil Litigation. Eagan, MN: Thomson West, 2003.
- McClung, Paul J. and W. Scott Carpenter. *Texas Criminal Jury Charges*. Costa Mesa, CA: James Pub., 1999-.
- State Bar of Texas. Committee on Pattern Jury Charges. Texas Pattern Jury Charges-

- Business, Consumer, Employment. Austin, TX: State Bar of Texas, 2000.
- State Bar of Texas. Committee on Pattern Jury Charges. *Texas Pattern Jury Charges-Family*. Austin, TX: The Bar, 1998.
- State Bar of Texas. Committee on Pattern Jury Charges. *Texas Pattern Jury Charges-General Negligence, Intentional Personal Torts*. Austin, TX: State Bar of Texas, 1998. KFT1742.6.A65 T49 1998.
- State Bar of Texas. Committee on Pattern Jury Charges. *Texas Pattern Jury Charges-Malpractice, Premises, Products.* Austin, TX: State Bar of Texas, 2002.

Vermont

- Dinse, John M., Ritchie E. Berger, and Frederick S. Lane. *Vermont Jury Instructions, Civil and Criminal.* Salem, NH: Butterworth Legal Publishers, 1993-. KFV542.6 .V47.
- Vermont Trial Lawyers Association. *Vermont Pattern Jury Instructions for Personal Injury Cases.* Montpelier, VT: Vermont Trial Lawyers Association, 1995.

Virginia

- Bacigal, Ronald J., Joseph S. Tate and Michael J. Herbert. *Jury Instructions, Virginia Practice Series*. Eagan, MN: Thomson/West, 2004.
- Herbert, Michael J. and Emanuel Emroch. *Virginia Jury Instructions*. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 1998.
- Instructions for Virginia and West Virginia. Newark, NJ: LexisNexis, 2001-.
- Virginia Model Jury Instructions, Criminal. Charlottesville, VA: Michie, 2003-.
- Virginia Model Jury Instructions, Civil. Charlottesville, VA: Michie, 1998-. KFV2942.6.A65 M63.

Washington

- Washington (State). Supreme Court. Committee on Jury Instructions. *Washington Pattern Jury Instructions. Civil, WPI.* St. Paul, MN: Thomson West, 2002.
- Washington (State). Supreme Court. Committee on Jury Instructions. *Washington Pattern Jury Instructions. Criminal, WPIC*. St. Paul, MN: West Pub. Co., 1994. KFW80 .W38 1994.

West Virginia

- Criminal Law Research Center. *West Virginia Criminal Jury Instructions*. Charleston, WV: Criminal Law Research Center, West Virginia Public Defender Services, 2003.
- Instructions for Virginia and West Virginia. Newark, NJ: LexisNexis, 2001-.

Wisconsin

Wisconsin Criminal Jury Instructions Committee. *Wisconsin Jury Instructions, Criminal*. Madison, WI: Wisconsin Criminal Jury Instructions Committee, University of Wisconsin Law School, 1988-.

- Wisconsin Judicial Conference. Civil Jury Instructions Committee. *Wisconsin Jury Instructions, Civil.* Madison, WI: University of Wisconsin-Extension, Dept. of Law, 1981. KFW2942.A6 W5.
- Wisconsin Juvenile Jury Instructions Committee. *Wisconsin Jury Instructions: Children.* Madison, WI: University of Wisconsin Law School, Continuing Education and Outreach, 2001.

Wyoming

- Wyoming State Bar. Civil Jury Instructions Committee. *Wyoming Civil Pattern Jury Instructions*. Cheyenne, WY: Wyoming State Bar, 1994.
- Wyoming State Bar. Committee on Pattern Criminal Jury Instructions. *Wyoming Pattern Criminal Jury Instructions*. Laramie, WY: Wyoming State Bar Committee on Pattern Criminal Jury Instructions, 1996-.

FEDERAL COURTS

General

- Judicial Conference of the United States. Subcommittee on Pattern Jury Instructions. Federal Judicial Center. Committee to Study Criminal Jury Instructions. *Pattern Criminal Jury Instructions: Report of the Subcommittee on Pattern Jury Instructions, Committee on the Operation of the Jury System, Judicial Conference of the United States (1987)*. St. Paul, MN: West Pub. Co., 1988. KF9682.A73 P45 1988.
- Modern Federal Jury Instructions: Criminal: Pattern Jury Instructions: Federal Judicial Center, Fifth Circuit, Sixth Circuit, Seventh Circuit, Eighth Circuit, Ninth Circuit, Eleventh Circuit. New York, NY: M. Bender: 1991.
- O'Malley, Kevin F., et al. Federal Jury Practice and Instructions. 5th ed. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2000. KF8984.D4 2000.
- Potuto, Josephine R., *et al. Federal Criminal Jury Instructions*. Charlottesville, VA: Michie Co., 1991-. KF9682.A65 S24 1991.
- Sand, Hon. Leonard B., et al. Modern Federal Jury Instructions, Civil. New York, NY: Matthew Bender, 1985-. KF8984.A65 M64 1985.
- Sand, Hon. Leonard B. *Modern Federal Jury Instructions, Criminal.* New York, NY: Matthew Bender, 1985-. KF8984.A65 M64 1985.

First Circuit

District Judges Association. First Circuit. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. Pattern

Jury Instructions (Criminal Cases). St. Paul, MN: West Group, 1998-. KF9682 .A73 P3 1998.

Fourth Circuit

Horn, Carl. *Horn's Federal Criminal Jury Instructions for the Fourth Circuit*. Charlotte, NC: Fourth Circuit Seminars & Publications, 2002.

Fifth Circuit

- District Judges Association. Fifth Circuit. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *Pattern Jury Instructions (Civil Cases)*. St. Paul, MN: West Pub. Co., 1998. KF8984.A73 P35 1999.
- District Judges Association. Fifth Circuit. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *Pattern Jury Instructions (Criminal Cases)*. St. Paul, MN: West Pub. Co., 2001. KF9682.A73 P35 2001.

Sixth Circuit

District Judges Association. Sixth Circuit. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *Pattern Criminal Jury Instructions*. St. Paul, MN: West Pub. Co., 1991. KF9682.A73 P36 1991.

Seventh Circuit

United States. Court of Appeals (7th Circuit). Committee on Federal Criminal Jury Instruction of the Seventh Circuit. *Federal Criminal Jury Instructions of the Seventh Circuit*. 4th ed. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 1999. KF9682.F4 7th 1999.

Eighth Circuit

- United States. Court of Appeals (8th Circuit). Committee on Model Jury Instructions. *Manual of Model Civil Jury Instructions for the District Courts of the Eighth Circuit*. Eighth Circuit, St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2001. KF8984.A73 M38 2001.
- United States. Court of Appeals (8th Circuit). Committee on Model Jury Instructions. Manual of Model Criminal Jury Instructions for the District Courts of the Eighth Circuit. St. Paul, MN: West Publishing Co., 2003. KF9682.A73 M38 2003.

Ninth Circuit

- United States. Court of Appeals (9th Circuit). Committee on Model Civil Jury Instructions. *Manual of Model Civil Jury Instructions for the District Courts of the Ninth Circuit.* St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2001. KF8984.A73 M39 2001.
- United States. Court of Appeals (9th Circuit). Committee on Model Criminal Jury Instructions. *Manual of Model Criminal Jury Instructions for the District Courts of the Ninth Circuit.* 2003 ed. St. Paul, MN: Thomson/West, 2003. KF9682.A73 M39 2003.
- United States Courts for the Ninth Circuit. *Manual of Model Civil Jury Instructions (9th Circuit)*. Web page, accessed June 2004. Available at

http://www.ce9.uscourts.gov/web/sdocuments.nsf/civ.

United States Courts for the Ninth Circuit. *Manual of Model Criminal Jury Instructions* (9th Circuit). Web page, accessed June 2004 Available at http://www.ce9.uscourts.gov/web/sdocuments.nsf/crim.

Eleventh Circuit

- District Judges Association. Eleventh Circuit. *Pattern Jury Instructions (Civil Cases)*, 2000 Edition. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2000. KF8984.A65 2000.
- District Judges Association. Eleventh Circuit. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *Pattern Jury Instructions (Civil Cases)*. Macon, GA: The Committee, 1999.
- District Judges Association. Eleventh Circuit. Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *Pattern Jury Instructions (Criminal Cases)*. Atlanta, GA: The Committee, 2003.
- United States. Court of Appeals (11th Circuit). Committee on Pattern Jury Instructions. *Pattern Jury Instructions (Criminal Cases)*. St. Paul, MN: Thomson/West; 2003. KF9682.A73 P41 2003.

Bankruptcy

United States. Administrative Office of the United States Courts. Bankruptcy Judges Division. *Model Pattern Bankruptcy Jury Instructions*. Washington, D.C.: The Office, 1997.

GENERAL

Branson, Edward R., et al. Reid's Branson Instructions to Juries in Civil and Criminal Cases: Containing Selected Instructions and Citations From Various Jurisdictions.
Charlottesville, VA: Michie Co., 1900s-. KF8984 B73.

TOPICAL

- American Bar Association. Business Torts Litigation Committee. Subcommittee on Jury Instructions. *Model Jury Instructions Business Torts Litigation*. 3rd ed. Chicago, IL: American Bar Association, 1996. Microform KF325.15243 .M63 1996.
- American Bar Association. Construction Litigation Committee. *Construction Litigation*. Chicago, IL: American Bar Association, 2001. KF8984 .C66 2001.
- American Bar Association. Employment and Labor Relations Law Committee. *Employment Litigation*. Chicago, IL: Employment and Labor Relations Law Committee, Section of Litigation, American Bar Association, 1994. KF8984.A65 E57 1994; Microform KF325.13337 .E47 1994.
- American Bar Association. Section of Antitrust Law. Private Litigation Committee. Civil RICO Subcommittee. Sample Civil Rico Jury Instructions. Chicago, IL: American Bar Association, Section of Antitrust Law, 1994. KF9375.Z9 S25; Microform KF325.1148. S36 1994.

American Bar Association. Section of Antitrust Law. *Sample Jury Instructions in Civil Antitrust Cases*. Chicago, IL: American Bar Association, Section of Antitrust Law, 1999. Microform KF325.106 .S26 1999.

- American Bar Association. Tort Trial and Insurance Practice Section. *Model Jury Instructions for Fidelity Cases.* Chicago IL: Tort Trial and Insurance Practice Section, American Bar Association, 2003.
- American Bar Association. Securities Litigation Committee. Subcommittee on Accounting Issues. *Securities Litigation*. Chicago, IL: Securities Litigation Committee, Subcommittee on Accounting Issues, Section of Litigation, American Bar Association, 1996. KF8984 .S42 1996; Microform KF325.1025 .S43 1996.
- American Intellectual Property Law Association. *Guide to Model Patent Jury Instructions*. [Arlington, VA]: American Intellectual Property Law Association, 2000.
- Burton, Duane. *Jury Instructions in Intellectual Property Cases*. Denver, CO: Big Foot Press, 1980-. KF8984.A65 B87.
- Eades, Ronald W. *Jury Instructions in Automobile Actions*. 4th ed. Newark, NJ: LexisNexis, 2001-. KF8984.T7 E34.
- Eades, Ronald W. *Jury Instructions in Commercial Litigation*. Charlottesville, VA: Michie, 1996. KF8984 .E15 1996.
- Eades, Ronald W. *Jury Instructions on Damages in Tort Actions.* 5th ed. Newark, NJ: LexisNexis, 2003-. KF8984 .D681.
- Eades, Ronald W. *Jury Instructions on Products Liability*. 3rd ed. Charlottesville, VA: LEXIS Law Pub., 1999. KF8984.E23 P7 1999.
- Eades, Ronald W. *Jury Instructions on Medical Issues.* 6th ed. Newark, NJ: LexisNexis, 2004. KF8984.A65 E22 2004.
- International Trademark Association. *Trade Dress Jury Instructions*. New York, NY: International Trademark Association, 1997.
- Kehoe, Robert E. *Jury Instructions for Contract Cases*. Chicago, IL: Comerford and Boyd, 1995.
- McNamara, Todd J. and J. Alfred Southerland. *Federal Employment Jury Instructions*. Costa Mesa, CA: James Pub., 2003.
- National Association of Railroad Trial Counsel. Jury Instruction Committee. *Jury Instructions: Federal Employers Liability Act, Safety Appliance Act, Boiler Inspection Act.* S.I.: The Committee, 1995.
- Niesley, Robert C. *Model Jury Instructions for Surety Cases*. Chicago, IL: Tort and Insurance Practice, American Bar Association, 2000. KF1045.A73 M63 2000.
- North American Securities Administrators Association. Enforcement Publications Committee. Jury Instructions Under Securities Laws. S.I.: North American Securities Administrators

- Association, 1997-.
- Sample RICO Jury Instructions. Chicago, IL: Rudnick & Wolfe, 1994.
- Schwartz, Martin A. Section 1983 Litigation. 4th ed. New York: Aspen Publishers, 2003.
- Yagman, Stephen. *Police Misconduct and Civil Rights: Federal Jury Practice and Instructions*. 2nd ed. St. Paul, MN: West Group, 2002. KF1325.C58 Y34 2002.

SELECTED ARTICLES

- Brownstein, Bettina E. "It's Time To Make Jury Instructions Understandable." 37 *Arkansas Lawyer* 24 (Fall 2002).
- Cohen, Neil P. "The Timing of Jury Instructions." 67 Tennessee Law Review 681 (2000).
- Cork, Charles M. "A Better Orientation for Jury Instructions." 54 *Mercer Law Review* 1 (2002).
- Dumas, Bethany K. "Jury Trials: Lay Jurors, Pattern Jury Instructions, and Comprehension Issues." 67 *Tennessee Law Review* 701 (2000).
- Easley, Dorothy F. "'Plain English' Jury Instructions: Why They're Still Needed and What the Appellate Community Can Do To Help." 78 Florida Bar Journal 66 (October 2004).
- Grenig, Jay E. "The Civil Jury In America: Improving the Jury's Understanding of a Case." 24 American Journal of Trial Advocacy 93 (2000).
- Jurand, Sara Hoffman. "California Adopts Clearer Civil Jury Instructions." 39 *Trial* 72 (October 2003).
- Karlsberg, Robert C. and Leah M. Norris. "Jury Service (Group Dynamics and Jury Instructions)." 35 Maryland Bar Journal 55 (May-June 2002).
- Kataoka, Mike. "Eschewing Obfuscation: The Judicial Council Strives for Plain English With Its New Jury Instructions." 20 *California Lawyer* 52 (2000).
- Kelley, Patrick J. and Laurel A. Wendt. "What Judges Tell Juries About Negligence: A Review of Pattern Jury Instructions." 77 Chicago-Kent Law Review 587 (2002).
- Kimble, Joseph. "How to Mangle Court Rules and Jury Instructions." 8 *The Scribes Journal of Legal Writing* 39 (Annual 2001).
- Kimble, Joseph. "The Route To Clear Jury Instructions." 78 *Michigan Bar Journal* 1406 (1999).
- Kizer, Aaron and Mark R. Santana. "Civil Jury Instructions Update: Building a Better Trial Toolbox." 40 *Arizona Attorney* 28 (July-August 2004).
- Lauchheimer, Aaron. "Giving Jurors the Law In Plain English: A Task Force Rewrites 800 Civil Jury Instructions To Promote Comprehension." 25 National Law Journal 4 (July 28, 2003).

Lazer, Leon D. "Is Plain English the Answer To the Needs of Jurors?" 73 New York State Bar Association Journal 37 (June 2001).

- Lerner, Renee Lettow. "The Transformation of the American Civil Trial: The Silent Judge." 42 William and Mary Law Review 195 (2000).
- Mossinghoff, Gerald J. and Donald R. Dunner. "Increasing Certainty In Patent Litigation: The Need for Federal Circuit Approved Pattern Jury Instructions." 10 *Federal Circuit Bar Journal* 273 (2000).
- Palmer, Jerry R. "Specificity in Jury Instructions." 10 Kansas Journal of Law & Public Policy 129 (2000).
- Park, Rosemary J. and Ruth M. Harvey. "Putting Jury Instructions In Plain English: The Minnesota Civil Jury Instruction Guides." *Clarity* 13 (December 1999).
- Pether, Penelope. "Critical Discourse Analysis, Rape Law and the Jury Instruction Simplification Project." 24 Southern Illinois University Law Journal 53 (1999).
- Semmler, Carolyn and Neil Brewer. "Using a Flow-Chart To Improve Comprehension of Jury Instructions. 9 *Psychiatry, Psychology and Law* 262 (2002).
- Swartz, Lee C. "Development and Use of Civil Jury Instructions in Pennsylvania." 72 *Pennsylvania Bar Association Quarterly* 51 (April 2001).
- Tiersma, Peter. "The Rocky Road To Legal Reform: Improving the Language of Jury Instructions." 66 *Brooklyn Law Review* 1081 (2001).
- Wissler, Roselle L., Katie A. Rector and Michael J. Saks. "The Impact of Jury Instructions on the Fusion of Liability and Compensatory Damages." 25 *Law and Human Behavior* 125 (2001).

RESEARCH

- Bissett, Jan and Margi Heinen. *State Jury Instructions on the Web.* Available at LLRX.com, http://www.llrx.com/columns/reference38.htm (Part 1, June 17, 2002); http://www.llrx.com/columns/reference39.htm (Part 2, July 15, 2002).
- Johnson, Phill. "How to Find Jury Instructions." 91 Illinois Bar Journal 36 (July 2003).
- Williams, Jane M. "Jury instructions: A Selective Bibliography of Subject Compilations." 18 Legal Reference Services Quarterly 123 (Winter 1999).

June 2001; revised December 2004.